Northwood, NH
Board of Selectmen Agenda
November 9, 2021

You may also watch the meeting live on the Town Website at this link:
https://livestream.com/accounts/28706232/events/8784532/ playerPwidth=640&height=360&enab
leInfoAndActivity=truefsdefaultDrawer=&auntoPlay=true&mute=false

6:00 pm Call to Order, Roll Call, Pledge of Allegiance
Citizen's Forum (15-minute limit, 3 minutes/speaker)
ONGOING BUSINESS

¢ Approve Minutes
October 19, 2021 - Work Session, October 26, 2021- Regular Meeting

* Consent Agenda

e TA Reports / Items for Board Action

OLD BUSINESS
Review for Action: Town Owned Property Sale Update
Review for Action: Proposed Complaint Against a Town Employee Policy

Review for Action: Review Proposed Inclement Weather Maintenance Policy

NEW BUSINESS

Review for Action: Establish Date for 2022 Deliberative Session and Budget Hearing

Review Board Tasker Manager

Board Committee Reports.

Citizen's Forum {15-minute limit, 3 minutes/speaker)

Continue Review of FY22 Budget Requests ~ Proposed Warrant Articles — Capital Requests
Nonpublic Session if needed RSA 91-A:31l (a @ e)

Adjournment

*Any person requiring interpretive or other accommodations is asked to contact the
Town Office at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting.



DRAFT

TOWN OF NORTHWOOD
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Town of Northwood ¢ 818 First NH Turnpike » Northwood, NH 03261 (603) 942-5586

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
October 19, 2021

ROLL CALL: Chairman Hal Kreider, Vice-Chair Matt Frye, Select Board Member Beth Boudreau,
Select Board Member Tim Ceolby, Select Board Member Jim Guzofski

STAFF PRESENT: TA Walter Johnson, Finance Director Cheryl Eastman, Land Use Assistant
Susan Austin

6:00 P.M. Chairman Hal Kreider opened the Northwood Board of Selectmen meeting and
led the Pledge of Allegiance

Selectman Kreider stated that this is a work session so they are not taking public comment at
this meeting,.

Police Department Budget:

Chief Drolet stated that he has distributed his budget. He stated that there were not too many
changes or a great deal of increases. He stated that the majority of the increase is in the salary
and benefits line. He stated that they are adding a position, so that is generally the largest
increase. It's cheaper to pay part-timers to cover the shifts than paying overtime, so it offset
the increase in the part-time line with reducing the overtime line. There's an increase in the
cruiser modems that's just about $440, and a security system camera upgrade. They had to
replace the rear door of the police department, they used to have a window in it, It was a
standard door and they had to make that a secure door, Because of that, they cannot see
outside anymore so they would like to add a camera to that back door with a monitor so the
officers can see who's at that back door before they swing it open. He stated that he added
$1,000 to make that adjustment. The printing line has been reduced, since they print very littie
now, mostly for Animal Control. Contractor services is up $2,000 that's just cost of doing
business. The businesses still increase their fees even if we're on a default budget. Uniforms
and supplies increased $2,000, the price of ammunition is skyrocketed so that is a huge hit
that comes out of that line so that's a huge hit to that line, For qualifications they required
provide ammunition to officers that go to the academy, so they need to have that on hand for
them. Equipment purchase has a seven-thousand-dollar increase, but that's not an increase
that's just an adjustment to the accounts. They closed off a line of 7000, which was
Equipment/Small Items and combine that into just one equipment line so it's not really an
increase it's a just a reallocation if you will. For Vehicle Maintenance, he put up a thousand
dollars, but they are still waiting for the pickup truck that they ordered back in 2020, so since
they are holding on to these older cars longer waiting for the replacements, he felt it was best
to add to vehicle maintenance to cover those expenses. Chief Drolet also stated that as of now,
they have an officer deployed overseas at least until May 2022. That's going to leave an
opening. They already have a current opening of a full-time officer that left so they had two full-
time openings, so they have had some struggling with staffing. Hiring is not the easiest thing to
do right now. They have 4 patrolmen to cover 365 days, A few months ago he asked permission

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 19, 2021 Page 106



o
P OO0~ NN P LI —

DRAFT

to solve two problems, one backfilled the deployed officer's position and also use that
opportunity to add a new officer into the staff that we haven't added since 2008. He stated that
they are averaging anywhere between 250 to 350 calls for service a month right now and they
are close to 3,000 calls for the service for the year right now and around between 10 and 15
arrests per month. Moter vehicle accidents, depending on the on the month are higher in the
winter and lower in the summer. Having two officers on would be a huge benefit to the
department. Land wise, the Town is very spread out. One of the biggest complaints he hears
now from the town is that they don't have time to deal with the motor vehicle complaints. They
just don't have the presence that you would see in a larger town that has five or six cars on.
Right now, there are two candidates in the pipeline that have a few more hoops to jump
through, but hopefully in the next two weeks they will be extending them offers of employment.
Selectman Kreider asked if the wages they were offering were attracting applicants. Chief
Drolet stated that the commission has looked at where the 2021budget is locking pretty
healthy this year so they are using some of that money to try to adjust the younger officers up
the pay scale so they can advertise for a higher rate.

Animal Control

Chief Drolet stated that overall, it's reduction of about $3,600 in the line, and that’s pretty
much just coming right out of the wages. They have had someone in the position for a

pretty steady amount of time that they could actually see what the hours were going to be and
with that reduction they can cover plenty of hours for that. Selectman Kreider asked if they still
have the vehicle and where's the gas and maintenance for that vehicle? Chief Drolet stated that
that comes out of the vehicle maintenance. A few years ago, one of the town administrators
said he wanted to save money and cut the gas line out of it so just pull it out of the PD

gas line. Chief Drolet stated that he would really like it back in its own line, The ACO uses
about $300 worth of gas, and it would really be better in its own line for proper accounting.

Police Commission

Linda Smith, Police Commission Administrator and Nicole Rodler, Chair of the Police
Commission were present. Ms. Smith stated that they reduced the salary line to reflect to bring
it down a little bit closer to actual expenditures for the last three or four years. There should
still be enough in there for any potential step increase. The only other change was an increase
in the equipment purchase line, It's the sixty-four dollars is for the post office box rental. She
stated that she would like to add $100 to the equipment that would be a cost share with her
other departments police commission legal is a retainer of $200 a month by the attorney that
the commission has which is separate from the Town’s general Counsel. That varies from year
to year. He's available both to her and to the commission to answer any general legal
questions,

Budget Committee

Ms. Smith stated that they made some reductions. Advertising is generally once a year for the
public hearing and maybe occasionally there would be a reason to advertise if there are
vacancies but they have been trying to do that with the website.

Planning and Development

Ms. Smith stated that one of the reductions is moving the GIS cost share down to a dollar. One
main change is in the salaries, the TA had suggested breaking down Land Use Specialists and
Land Use Admin Assist, 80% 20% between the Planning Board and the ZBA, to better show
where those salary expenses are being used rather than executive office. Ms. Smith explained
the break down for the Planner contracted services rate increase. She stated that the rate is
going to increase from $60 /hour to $65/hour at the end of this contract, which expires on
12/31 of this year. She stated that this contract is a not to exceed amount, because of the
variables on the planning beard with applications when they come in, how much time is
involved in them, the number of them, it’s really very difficult to say x number of hours per
month for the planner. Because of that, it's based on a yearly total of 520 hours. The planner

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 19, 2021 Page 2 of 6



Woo N kb —

DRATFT

has done an exceptional job keeping underneath that amount and trying to keep up with the
work as it fluctuates. It has worked out well over the last three or four years. The only other
option other than increasing it to reflect that would be to reduce it and she would have real
concerns about having it that tight that we may very well have to cut service if that happens
Back in 2019 they went over the number of hours. Last year the selectmen worked with
Strafford Regional Planning Commission because of the default budget was so far from the
actual amount of the contract. There are things that the planner has helped with that do not
come under the contract, but he's helped us out with different issues relative to economic
development and there are other areas that are not part of that contract that they provide.
Typically, she, the chairman and the planner meet to work with SRPC to provide information
from the local level on transportation planning and the 10-year plan. SRPC also provided the
annual planning handbooks, as well as a number of other services.

Zoning Board

Ms. Smith stated that there are no real changes to that other than the changes to the
moving the wages into that section. There's been some minor reductions based on the
previous expenditures for three or four years the printing and advertising is down a little bit.
Ms. Smith stated that they're still looking for pecple to be on the Zoning Board.

Conservation Commission

Ms. Smith stated that this line has very small changes within the department but the total
amount is within two dollars. The forester seems to be the one of the few spots, but it's actually
reallocating that. She stated that they were putting all of the money inte the Town Forest Land
Management for the Town Forester for the update of the Forest Management plan. The others
have a dollar should there be a need that comes up that it keeps the line open but that's it.

Fire Department

Chief Tetreault stated that there is not a big differenice between his last proposed budget and
this one, The biggest thing versus the default budget is including his salary in the budget. The
full-time staff will have projected wage salary increases for all of full-time staff of a two percent
step increase. The other larger increases are for part-time wages and that should give them
enough money to cover the station with two people 24 /7. For Call Back pay, Chief siated that
he spoke with the TA about this. The call firefighters make $10 an hour when they come back
for calls. As the Board is aware, Dunkin Donuts and McDonalds pay more than that. In this
budget he proposes that they have one pay rate so if a firefighter makes fifieen dollars an hour
working a shift, they will make fifteen dollars an hour on callbacks. If they are making more
money they'll may come back to calls more often. He stated that they have two cell phones and
six mobile data terminals that they use in their apparatus. Electricity has always been under
budgeted in the default budget so he put that up where it actually belongs. For building
maintenance and repairs, since they haven’t spent that much lately, he feels that $10,000 is
reasonable, and that’s down $3,000 from the default. A new line this year is Paramedic
Intercepts. Chief stated that hopefully with one of their firefighters getting her paramedic they
have reduced that line. A paramedic intercept costs about $550 dollars per call. The more sick
people they have without paramedics on duty, the more it cost. Fortunately, they have some
really good advanced EMTs that know when they need a paramedic. Ambulance billing is a new
line to call out what exactly what they are paying for. Ambulance billing is one of the lines they
hope is overspent, because that means we're collecting more money because it's a percentage of
what they collect. Mutual Aid Dispatch went up again this year. It's still a really good deal,
$48,000 for dispatching service 24 7. They have a regional hazardous materials team that they
can call on and they have a chief officer available to them 24 /7 that come out and help if we
have a fire, and that's less than the cost of one person. For Contracted Services, he broke

that out. Most of that is subscriptions for software that they use, emergency reporting and
when to work scheduling. Office supplies is pretty self-explanatory. Educational is fire
prevention supply, including ceoloring books and hats and stuff for the schools. Fire department
general supplies includes the Janos sports. Medical supplies, that's for supplies they only

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 19, 2021 Page 3 of 6



ot
b3 = SOOI BN —

DRAFT

use once like band-aids. He noted that they are pretty fortunate because that line would be a
lot higher if it wasn't for Concord Hospital. Concord Hospital provides the majority of their
disposable medical supplies free of charge. Some things we don't get from Concord

Hospital are pretty expensive. One of them is I/ O needles. One I/O needle is $100, so every
time they have a cardiac arrest, they use one of those needles. Diesel and Gas is just up
slightly. He stated that he didn’t want to anticipate how much the price of fuel could go up, it’s
a bit of a wild card. Uniforms are pretty self-explanatory, they buy all the uniforms for the staff
whether that be uh uniforms for career staff or t-shirts for call firefighters. The Equipment line
is eleven thousand dollars. If they need to replace hose or nozzles or fittings or things like that.
Testing hose usually wipes out a couple lengths of hose. Vehicle Maintenance and Repair is not
as high as requested last year, because they have some new apparatus and that's definitely
had a positive impact on what they are spending for vehicle repairs. Equipment maintenance:
they have to do an annual ladder testing, hose testing flow, and test the breathing apparatus.
They are fortunate this year, the breathing apparatus was new so they didn't have to flow test
that but they have to do that next year. For gear purchase, firefighter protective clothing, they
only bought what they absolutely had to this year but they were trying to be on a maintenance
schedule so he did bump that line up this year so that they could get back on schedule for
anything they might have missed this year. An average set of turnout gear cost about three
thousand dollars a set to outfit a firefighter from head to toe. After 10 years if they even if

it's never been used after 10 years it's not good for first line service. Hydrants, again, they
haven't spent that in the last few years but they do have some hydrants that are in need of
repair. Dues are National Fire Protection Association, Fire Chiefs Association, Fire Prevention
Society and New Hampshire State Fire Association. EMS equipment maintenance: monitor
defibrillators have to be serviced annually, the stretchers need to be serviced annually, so
that's basically what that that covers, EMS training covers initial EMS training whether that be
EMT, Advanced EMT or paramedic and then refresher training. They are required to take
refuser training every two years. Discussion continued about the Fire Department budget and
potential upcoming expenditures,

Highway Department

Public Works Foreman Chris Brown was present to discuss his proposed budget. He stated
that most of his budget is pretty similar to what he’s had in the and for the most part it's

a pretty minimal increase over last year's budget. The foreman salary they added that in this
year versus default budget. The call crew stayed the same. They don'’t use town cell phones
they are using their personal so they cut that right out of the budget, Electricity and heating
oil, they have a waste oil furnace now. Contracted services, permit fees and supplies the
contracted services, that's the roadside mowing the building and grounds maintenance,
grading and outside contract at work. Fuel has been pretty decent with their fuel consumption,
it’s their largest consumer obviously in the wintertime. Equipment maintenance and
maintenance and repair is all combined now, so there is an increase in that one. Electric and
heating oil for the recycling building. Department tools and supplies was all moved to either the
equipment purchase line or the contracted services line. They are trying to catch up versus the
default budget. For Highway cleaning and maintenance, there is a big change in contracted
services, basically most of the work he would like to keep in house and not have to put out to
contractors, so he just took portion of that line and moved it towards the rental line on the
other page and that in turn will allowed him to have the excavator for six months and a chipper
for a week if they need it here and there. In the two months that they had the mini excavator
this year they did 13 culverts and 2,700 feet of ditching. Snow and Ice control Mr. Brown
stated that if they look at the last few years, they haven’t spent close to $60,000, and this year
this year they are at $32,000. He stated that going back through the numbers in records that
he found most of the trucks three years ago were six-wheelers, at $95 to $100 an hour versus
small contracted pickups, or one tons at $75. There's a big fluctuation in prices there, plus
weather patterns are changing and most of everything is in-house regardless if it’s storm or an
ice event. They try not to call out the contractors unless they're absolutely needed, if they know
it's going to be a 12-inch storm they're called ahead of time. Originally, salt was at $73 a ton.
This year it's actually ten dollars less a ton than it was last year, Sanitation: Mr, Brown stated
that they were still at full staff at the transfer station. The only increase was in the salary lines,

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT Qctober 19, 2021 Paged of 6



OGO ~-I1hN N LN —

DRAFT

For Solid Waste, Mr. Brown stated that there is a pretty significant increase because they are
working with a three-year-old budget, and obviously tipping costs and transportation costs
have increased a lot. Discussion continues about the Highway Department Budget as well as
the Transfer station budget including the road reconstruction and maintenance expenses
estimate of $350,000 based on the new road surface management plan. Replacing the oldest
six-wheel dump truck is also recommended for placement on the warrant for 2022.

Selectmen's Budget

Selectman Kreider stated that he didn't think there was any desire to change anything as far as
the Selectman’s compensation, He stated that he would not have a problem with an equal
distribution of money. He stated that he would leave the overall number the same. He stated
that there wasn't anything for travel for selectmen and obviously when and if trainings are
back in person that certainly that could be a case where travel costs would be used.

Town Administrator's Budget

Mr. Johnson stated that the salary amount was the amount included in his contract,
Everything else includes the associated cost for social security, retirement system, insurances,
etc. He stated that he does carry a town cell phone. Also included in this budget is the storage
facility for document storage that we have at Archive America. Dues are of the membership
dues for the Town Administrator and training and travel for conferences this year, He stated
that he hasn attended any conferences as of yet as most have changed to remote due to
Covid, so he hasn’t spent anything out of those lines this year to date.

Moderator Budget

Mr. Jochnson stated that they maintain a stipend for the Moderator, but they haven't had a bill
submitted by the Moderator for the last three years, but they do have the provision there and
certainly they're entitled to submit their payment request for that.,

Executive Office Budget

Mr. Johnson stated that again this is another area where they have divided expenses for staff
into departments that they actually work for and so they have taken out the Building and
Assessing clerk and put that in the Building and Assessing departments and they have kept a
portion in here for Carol for her executive responsibilities. The same way with the Land Use
gpecialist and the Land Use Administrative Assistant as previously discussed. Contracted
gervices, a lot of these are their functional operational maintenance contracts for the copy
machines and a data destruction service that they subscribe to which takes away all their
confidential papers under a secure agreement, a water cooler, software for the web site hosting
and then Mainstay computer support that's for support for all our departments except for
police which is under a separate contract. Printing and Advertising is for the voter guides and
the town report and notices for public meetings, etc. Software: this is for Adobe software that
they use for sending out things for approval. They were able to cut back the number of licenses
on that after they started meeting in person again. General office supplies are copy toner,
batteries etc. Postage again they have allocated a percentage to the Executive Department for
mailings. Books and Periodicals: they have their proposal for new computers that need to be
replaced or aren't scheduled to be replaced, he just met today for their annual review with

. Mainstay about their hardware and software need and that'll be something that he will have by

the November budget meeting. These computers that are budgeted in are actually scheduled
for replacement in 2021, Equipment Maintenance and repairs: This is just keeping all the
equipment operating and whatever equipment maintenance that comes up comes out of that
particular budget. Dues include New Hampshire Municipal Association dues that they benefit
from every year is $4,000, Sam’s Club membership program that's pretty minimal. Travel and
Training is minimal there as well.

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFET October 19, 2021 Page 5 of 6



Weo-JhUn kbt —

DRAFT

Restoration of Records

Mr. Johnson stated that they started on a quest to restore and preserve the records in the
town clerk's office. The first volumes were done last year and so this year they recommended
the next two volumes which are smaller, and they've provided us this a quote for $6,984 to get
those next two volumes done. Selectman Kreider stated that they would stop there for now,
with the intent to work on more budget at the next meeting.

NON-PUBLIC SESSION

Motion: To enter non-public at 9:00 PM under RSA 91-A:3, II {a)
Motion: M. Frye

Second: J, Guzofski

Motion carried by roll call vote 5/0

The Select Board Members entered non-public at 9:00 PM.

Public Session Reconvened at 9:25

Motion: “To seal the minutes as they are relative to a personnel matter”
Motion: M. Frye

Second T. Colby

Motion: “To adjourn at 9:26 PM”

Motion: M. Frye

Second: T. Colby

Motion carried by Roll Call Vote 5/0

Respectfully Submitted
Susan Austin, Land Use Assistant

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 19, 2021 Page 6 of 6



Moo I ON o B Ro—

DRAFT

TOWN OF NORTHWOOD
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Town of Northwood » 818 First NH Turnpike » Northwood, NH 03261
(603) 942-5586

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
October 26, 2021

ROLL CALL: Chairman Hal Kreider, Vice-Chair Matt Frye Select Board Member Beth Boudreau,
Select Board Member Tim Colby, Select Board Member Jim Guzofsk1

STAFF PRESENT: TA Walter Johnson,

6:00 P.M. Chairman Hal Kreider opened the Northwood Board of Selectmen meeting and.
led the Pledge of Allegiance

CITIZEN FORUM: No Comments

Minutes

Motion: “To approve the minutes of October 12, 2021, as amended.”
Motion: M. Frye
Second: T. Colby

Motion carried by roll call vote 4/0/1 B. Boudreau abstained,

CONSENT AGENDA

Northwood NH Consent Agenda for October 26, 2021
Payroll Manifest dated October 20, 2021;

Batch # 17967 for $78,750.37

Accounts Payable Manifest dated October 20, 2021:
Batch # 17971 for $1,760.00

Accounts Payable Manifest dated October 27, 2021:
Batch # 18004 for $68,6970.95

Treasurer’s Report - N/A
Administrative Abatements - N/A

Property Tax Exemptions: Approve or Deny per Assessor’s Recommendations
N/A

Motion: To approve the Consent agenda for October 26, 2021 as presented
Motion: T, Colby

Second: M. Frye

Motion carried 5/0

Town Administrator Report:

Staffing Update: PD is working two Patrolman candidates through the hiring process.

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 26, 2021 Page 1 of 5




OB ~1G B L b —

DRAFT
Building Repairs and Painting: Work repairs to the community center east side siding will be
done later this fall according to the contractor’s schedule.

Town Facilities Lighting Upgrade: We finally have a proposal for the lighting upgrade package
for all facilities and the cost is in line with the budgeted encumbered amount of $28,000. A
copy of the breakdown is included in your packet. These funds are encumbered in the
restricted fund balance from 2019, As this project has an existing approved Purchase Order
Walter requested the Board’s authorization to-sign all necessary documents related to
completing the project. Paving at the handicap ramp at the Community Hall will be completed
by the DPW soon.

Motion: “To authorize the Town Administrator to sign all necessary documents required
for the completion of the Eversource Lighting Fixture Program”,

Motion: T. Colby

Second: M., Frye

Motion carried 5/0

Road Paving Schedule: Reclaiming is completed for a portion of Bow Street, Harmony and
Bigelow Rd. The repair to a small section of Harmony Rd will be completed this fall.
Shouldering is being done on the three roads this week. Tim noted there is also a small section
of Ridge Rd. that was damaged by a downed powerline last winter and a section of Harvey Lake
Rd that needs to be done by R & D Paving before they finish for the winter.

FY 22 TA/Department Head Budgets: Budget review will continue on 11/2 at 6:30. If time
allows some of the smaller budgets remaining can be reviewed at the end of tonight’s meeting, 1
expect we can wrap up the review of the operating budget on 11/2 and then move on to the
warrant articles. The schedule includes the Building Code Compliance and Health at 6:30,
Recreation at 6:50, Town Clerk/Tax Collector at 7:15, Library 7:45, Finance/Personnel at 8: 15,
Walter noted from there we will move on to the capital items and warrant articles on the 9t
and vote on all items on the 16,

Road Surface Management Program (RSMS) Update: Work continues on the final version of the
plan. Walter noted we are still anticipating on getting the final version in early November as the
Town has provided all the necessary input for the maintenance and reconstruction work for the
first five years of the plan.

Household Hazardous Waste Day 2023: The City of Rochester is requesting our conditional
commitment to participate in the 2023 regional household hazardous waste day. They are
aware of the condition that the participation is subject to budget funding approval. A grant

- application to NHDES for the 2023 event is being submitted in January of 2022 so a.

commitment is needed before then. Northwood’s share is $ 2,028.81. A motion to commtit
subject to funding is required. The Board discussed the benefits versus the cost of participating
in the program. Walter reported in 2021 there were 30 vehicles from Northwood that
participated and only 3 in 2020 during the height of the pandemic. Not participating in the
program may result in some hazardous material in our regular trash or dumped along
roadsides. The cost for the 2022 event is included in the proposed budget as part of the
transfer station hazardous waste disposal line which includes other disposal cost handled at
the facility. After further discussion the Board agreed by consensus to send the letter of
conditional commitment for the 2023 event to the City of Rochester.

Resident Winter Sand Shed: Chris and Jeff have constructed a shelter for winter sand to be
used by residents at their homes. The shelter will protect the sand from freezing. Resident may
take up to two 5-gallon buckets at a time. The sand is not available to commercial contractor
sanders etc. The Board expressed their appreciation to Chris and Jeff for getting this long
overdue project completed as it will be a benefit for the residents during inclement winter
weather.

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 26, 2021 ) Page 2 of 5




OO =~ N LA oo o=

DRAFT

RT. 107 /Main Street Bridge Construction: Construction began yesterday on the culvert
replacement project by NHDOT. There will be one way traffic during the project with several
complete detours when necessary. A small amount of parking at the Community Hall may be
affected during the construction.

Upcoming Meetings Schedule: Board Meeting Schedule: Budget work session on 11/2, and
11/16 if necessary, regular meeting on 11/9 and 11/23, '

Old Business:

Fown auction of Town owned property: Walter reported a total of thirty Town owned properties
were sold at the October 16 auction. A list of the property locations and high bid amount is
included in the Board’s meeting packet which is also on the Town website. There is one high
bidder on the property located at 8 Elm Street for $20,000 who has withdrawn their bid. There
is a backup bidder who the auctioneer will contact for the property at a bid of $17,500. This
matter will be discussed further in non-public session under RSA 91A:311 (d).

New Business:

Deputy Health Officer Recommendation —~ Adam Schaub: Walter reported that Adam has
expressed an interest in serving as the Deputy Health Officer (DHO)and his appointment is
supported by the Health Officer Jared Shaheen. This position like the Health Office position is
appointed by the State on the recommendation of the Select Board. The Board discussed a
concern of performing the DHO duties during Adam’s shift time with the Fire Department.
Walter stated that this would be a condition of the appointment except in the event of a health
emergency which he would likely be involved in as a Captain in the NFD. An annuatl $1000
stipend is budgeted for this position.

Motion: To recommend Adam Schaub as the Deputy Health Officer
Motion: M. Frye
Second: T. Colby

Motion Carried 4 -1 with J. Guzofski voting no due to his objectioﬁ to Health Officer and
Deputy positions have authority over the Select Board in certain circumstances by State
law. He is not objecting to Adam himself being appointed.

Proposed Complaint Against a Town Emplovee Policy

Walter brought forth a proposed policy to address and establish a process for the public to
formally bring forth any complaints of any Town employee actions that may have aggrieved in
some way. The draft is from a similar form he’s used in another community and found it to
work well if citizens feel they've been missed treated or negatively impacted by the actions of a
Town employee while working for the Town. As discussion, the Board agreed to as Town labor
Counsel to review the policy and they will consider it after reviewing Counsel’s comments at a
future meeting.

Proposed Inclement Winter Weather Maintenance Policy

Walter presented a draft of an inclement winter weather policy that he recommends the Board
adopt. This policy outlines the general process and procedures used by the DPW/ Highway
Department and the contractor’s hired by the Town. This policy will assist citizens with
understanding the priorities and processes used to maintain the Town roads and town school
facilities during the winter season. If adopted, the Select Board is required to review this policy
with the DPW Foreman prior to each winter season and make any adjustment to the policy as
may be necessary. The consensus of the Board was to bring the draft back at the next regular
meeting for adoption with no changes at this time.

Review Board Task Manager

Chairman Kreider inquired if any Board member has any additions to or questions or concerns
regarding the any items on the current list. Jim asked about the status of the Bow St. and Rt4

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes ‘ :
DRAFT October 26, 2021 Page 3 of 5




OG0 -1 G\ L B L )

DRAFT

intersection matter. Walter reported the two property owners involved in handling the drainage
problem are now in court and we are waiting to see the outcome of that before we go forward
with addressing the utility pole relocation and finishing the pavement. Matt inquired about the
Harvey Lake Dam and now that the property that may own a portion or all of the dam is now for
sale does that have any bearing on the situation. Walter stated that where the Town has taken
a position that we don’t own the dam and will not be taking any steps to maintain it the sale of
the abutting property should not impact our position. It was noted that only a pertion or one
parcel of the property may be for sale and not the portion involving the dam. Tim asked if the
Meadows Dam repair should be on the list and Walter felt it being a state responsibility not a
Town, he hadn’t put it on the list. Walter was asked to follow up on the status of the repair.

Board Comtnittee Reports

Matt reported on the Trunk or Treat event put on by the Recreation Department last weekend
was very successful with a bunch of participants and several volunteers provide trunks. Jim
reported on the Budget Committee’s recent 37 gtr. review meeting last week. He expressed his
appreciation to Walter and Cheryl for their preparedness and professional responses to the
Committee’s questions. '

Walter noted that he is still working with two homeowners regarding pending tax deeding and
hopes they can avoid taking the properties for nonpayment of taxes. He will update the Board at
the next regular meeting.

Continue Review of Department Head FY22 Budget Requests - Voter Registration, Elections,
Audit Services, Assessing, Treasurer, Legal Services.

Voter Registration: Walter noted there are three elections scheduled for 2022 and the budget
numbers reflect the funds necessary for the three which is similar to the 2018 budgeted
amounts.

Elections: Same budget process for the Voter registration with 3 elections. Walter to check on
funds for programing and maintaining the ballot machine for each election.

Audit Services: The $15,000 budget amount is based on a proposed 3-year contract with our
current auditors. ' ' -

Assessing: For 2022 we have included a share of the admin assistant for assessing of 25% of
her wages and benefits to reflect the actual and true cost of running the department. Walter
explained the need to keep property values in line with market values and not let them fall so
low that we have a similar impact as we did in 2020 with the 5-year-old revaluation. We are
budgeted for a statistical update with our contract assessor as some of the segments of the
properties in Town may no longer meet the DRA requirements. We have a $50,000 placeholder
as the actual price is still being discussed with Cross Country Appraisal Co, This cost appears
in the Contracted Services line along with the regular assessing cost of $54,000. The postage
for the department like others is being shared with this department in the amount of 10% of
the total annual cost.

Treasurer: This department is scheduled for a new desk top computer in 2021 for $1000 which
may be rescheduled until 2022 if funding is not available at the end of 2021. If it is then it will
be removed from the proposed budget.

Legal Services: Walter explained the amount of $15,000 for general legal services including our
labor Counsel is being proposed at the 2021 level. Currently, there is no pending litigation that
will create a significant impact to this line item and only the normal legal services are planned
for.

- NON-PUBLIC SESSION

Motion: To enter non-public at 8:00 PM under RSA 91-A:3, II {a&d)
Motion: M. Frye

Second: J. Guzoiski

Motion carried by roll call vote 5/0

The Select Board Members entered non-public at 8:00 PM.

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes
DRAFT October 26, 2021 : Page 4 of 5




DRAFT

1 Public Session Reconvened at 8:55
2
3 Motion: “To seal the minutes because it is determined that divulgence of this
4 information likely would affect adversely the reputation of any person other than a
5  member of this board.”
6  Motion: M. Frye
7 Second T. Colby
8
9  Motion carried by Roll Call Vote 5/0
10

11 Chair Kreider read the following statement: “Regarding the recent complaints lodged against a
12 Town employee in the highway department, the Board has investigated the complaint and

13 found it to be unfounded in terms of violating Town policy and state law. Where this is a

14 personnel matter details of the investigation will remain sealed in the non-public minutes per
15 RSA91A:3I (a).”

17  Motion: “To adjourn at 8:57 PM”

18 Motion: M. Frye

19  Second: T. Colby

2]  Motion carried by Roll Call Vote 5/0

24 Respectfully Submitted
25 Walter Johnson, Town Administrator

Board of Selectmen Meﬂting Minutes
DRAFT Qctober 26, 2021 Page Sof5 -




Northwood NH Consent Agenda for November 9, 2021

Payroll Manifest dated November 3, 2021:
Batch # 18014 for $74,786.11

Accounts Payabie Manifest dated November 3, 2021:
Batch # 18016 for $43,930.23

Accounts Payable Manifest dated November 3, 2021:
Batch # 18024 for $495.14

Accounts Payable Manifest dated November 10, 2021;

Batch # 18035 for $387,258.92

Treasurer’s Report — N/A

Administrative Abatements - N/A

Property Tax Exemptions: Approve or Deny per Assessor's Recommendations

Veteran's Tax Exemption — Andrew Gwinn Map 110 Lot 7

Other
N/A

Approved by a vote of __ —Yes, __ — No on October 26, 2021

Hal Kreider

Matt Frye

Beth Boudreau

James Guzofski

Tim Colby




FORM

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION

PERMANENT APPLICATION FOR PROPERTY TAX CREDITS/EXEMPTIONS
DUE DATE APRIL 15 PRECEDING THE SETTING OF THE TAX RATE

STEP' ] OWNER AND APPLICANT INFORMATION »=
O\:‘\I}JSR OWNER If required, is a PA-33 on file?
apeLicant | L Aladrewd Guing ‘ QO YEs @INo
NAME APPLICANT'S LAST NAME APPLICANT'S FIRST NAME Ml FHONE NUMBER
A AT 1 adr | L | [cos-289-466n |
APPLICANT'S LAST NAME APPLICANT'S FIRST NAME IMl l PHONE NUMBER
MAILING ADDRESS : :
[ 39 Petymark Dr ]
CITY/TOWN STATE ZIPCODE
| Aroffhwsed | |4 | [ 03is !
PROPERTY ADDRESS TAX MAP BLOCK . LOT i
[ 2% Deamurk Dr Lo I L7 !
IS THIS YOUR PRIMARY RESIDENGE? -~ (Y YES (QINO - ST R '
: ETERAN'S, !NFORMATIO_
Ve 1. AF’PLICANT IS THE:. 2. APPLYING FOR: v S
RANS
TAX EESDITS @ Veteran ERE _ Eﬁ Veterans Tax Credit {RSA 72 28) Standard ($59) IEinlonaE ($51 up lo $750} :
EXEMPTION O Spouse S f:'_] AII Veterans Tax Credlt (RSA ?2 28 b) IfAdopted by Tawn standard ($50) mphonai ($51 upto $750) _
o O Surwwng Spouse : D Tax Credlt for Serwce Connected Tota[ Dlsablllty (RSA T2 :35). Slandard $700) fOphonal ($T01 up 1u ‘34 000)
["_"} Ta)c Credlt for Surwving Spouse (RSA ?2 Z&a ufany parson whc: was il ord.'ed wmie on active duty...”)
[\@‘ Tax Credlt for Com bat Servlce (RSA 72 :28- c) ffAdopted by Town {$50 up to $500)
[:] Certain Disabled Veterans (Exemptlon) (RSA 72596-0) _
3. Vetsrar's Name - : a-tes of Military Servico’ 4. Date of Entry " 5.Date of Discharge/Releass
|_Andeey) Gufian Entermamoovyyy) | 0¢3Ygei3 | _0IRTA0/9 l-
- [F A VETERAN OF ALLIED CGUNTRY' (RSAT72:32) ) ' ’
6, Name of Allied Courtry Sérved 0~ 77, Branch &f Sav . <
B 19aad Sies Air Futfe, |
9. Does’ any other eligible Vetaran own Interast i this property? ) -8, Please Check One. . . . :
' YES NQ. IfYES, provide name : (¥ US Citizen at timé of eniry Into Service " :
O @5 | | O Allerr but resident of NH at tima of entry into Service
x ESJE_?F' g " - 10, [:] Elderly Exempf on (Must be 65 years ofage on or before April 1 of yaar fer whfch exemption is clafmed) (RSA 72:394) ©
' {Enfer ntimbers only MMDDYYYY)  10a. Applicants Daté of Birth 10b. Spouse's Date of Birth
11 [:] Improvements ta Assist ’Persons with Dlsabllltles (RSA 72: 37—a) - P
12 [T Blfnd Exemptmn {RSA 72 37
'_D Deaf Exampﬁen (RSA 72: 38 b) _
M Dlsabled Exemptlon (RSA 72-37 b)
STEP 4
RESIDENCY
STEP 5
OWNERSHIP |/ y _ el ,
STEP 6. Under penaitles of perjury, | deciare that | have examined this decument and to the bast of my belief the information herein is  frue, carrect
SIGNATURES | and Complete
xz—— /635691
SiGNATURE (IN INK) OF PROPERTY QWNER DATE
SIGNATURE (IN INK) OF PROPERTY CWNER DATE
PAZD

10f5

FAVN HINMO AL320ud

AN H3NMO ALE3d0dd

1C7IM0078 | YW XYL

Var. 1.5 03/2020




FORM NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
PA-29 | PERMANENT APPLICATION FOR PROPERTY TAX CREDITS/EXEMPTIONS

MUNICIPAL AUTHORIZATION - TO BE COMPLETED BY MUNICIPAL ASSESSING OFFICIALS

'VETERANS"TAX CREDIT: *

MUNICIPAL TAXMAR [ | BLOCKl

LoT | | AMOUNT ~ GRANTED DENIED_

[] Veterans' Tex Credit RSA 72:28 (Standard $50; Optional 351 up to §750)

D All Veterang' Tax Credit RSA 72:28-b (Standard $50; Optional $51 up fo $750) -

E] Tax Credit for Service-Connected Total Disability (Stendard $700; Cplional $701 up to $4,000}
[:] Surviving Spouse Tax Credit (Standard $700; Cptional $701 up lo $2,000)

|:| Tax Credit for Combat Sarvice pursuant o RSA 72:28-c ($50 up to $500)

00000
0OO00

D Review Applicabig Discharge Papers. Form(s}l

DATE

[ other Infoi’matinr;[

[:] Certain Disabled Vetsrans’ Exemptlon - O Veteran O Surviving Spoh'se.

‘GRANTED O DENIED O [ ]

APF’LICABLE ELDERLY, DISABLED AND DEAF EXEMPTION INCOME “’Nt) ASSET L[MITS ;

. CONTACT YQUR MUNICIPALITY FOR INCOME AND: ASSET LIMITS.

Inccme lelts : Deaf Exemption .o - Disabled Exemption :

© Elderly Exemption *

Elderly Exemptlon Per Age Category

65 ?4 years cf age £ |

Smgle S ol ' l ]
d i |

1
3

" 76.79 years c:f age co

PRINT / TYPE NAME OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASBESSING OFFICIAL

PRINT / TYPE NAME OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASSESSING OFFICIAL SIGNATURE (it INK) OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASSESSING OFFICIAL DATE
PRINT / TYPE NAME OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASBESSING OFFIGIAL SIGNATURE (IM INK) OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASS ESS ING OFFICIAL BATE
FRINT 7 TYPE NAME OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASSESSING CEFIGIAL SIGNATURE {IN INK} OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASSESSING OFFICIAL DATE
PRINT / TYPE NAME OF SELECTMEN / MUNIGIPAL ASSESSING OFFICIAL SIGNATURE (N INK) OF SELECTMEN / MUNICIPAL ASSESSING OFFICIAL DATE

SIGNATURE (IN INK) CF SELECTMEN ! MUNICIPAL ASSESSING CFFICIAL DATE

20f5

PA-29
Veer. 1.5 03/2020



Town of Northwood
Town Administrator’s Report
November 9, 2021

Staffing Update: PD continues to work two Patrolman candidates through the hiring process with one
conditional offer being extended and accepted to date. The part time vacancy at the transfer station has
been posted. The fulltime firefighter position opening will be posted soon. A draft of a revised position
description was included in your packet for discussion and approval.

Transfer Station Schedule: With winter coming and the transfer station being short handed it may be
necessary to cut back some of the hours of operation during the week until we are back at full staff as
Chris and/or Jeff will not be available to cover the open shifts.

Town Facilities Lighting Upgrade: I've approved and signed the necessary documents for the project
to move forward. We have a pre-construction tour and meeting set for 11/12.

Road Paving Update: The section of Harmony Rd with a subsurface materials problem has been
repaired and will be repaved in the near future.

FY 22 TA/Department Head Budgets: Budget review will continue at the end of this meeting.
Discussion will include a review of the requested TA/Department Head budget and the proposed
warrant articles. The final recommendation for the budget and money warrant articles will be
determined at the works session on 11/16 beginning at 6:00pm.

Road Surface Management Program (RSMS) Update: Work continues on the final version of the
plan. A copy of the next five years plan is included in your packet. :

RT. 107/Main Street Bridge Construction: Construction began yesterday on the culvert replacement
project by NHDOT and the area is now one way over the brook controlled by temporary traffic signals.
A small amount of parking at the Community Hall is being affected during the consiruction.

2021 Tax Rate Setting: According to the DRA municipal portal all documents have been received for
all entities but some are still under review so no time frame has been determined for when a rate
setting session will be set.

Tax Deeding: I recommend the Board waive the tax deeding of the property know as Map 232 Lot 11
as the property is occupied and taking it would create an undesirable obligation under a landlord tenant
liability risk for the Town. The waiver is in the signature folder for signatures if approved. We will
continue to work with the property owner on a payment plan to prevent a deeding situation in the
future. Motion: to waive the tax deeding of Map 232 Lot 11 due to the potential landlord/ tenant
liability risk to the Town. The Tax Collector will be deeding Map 206 lot 53 on Long Pond Road.

Upcoming Meetings Schedule: Board Meeting Schedule: Budget work session on 11/16% regular
meetings on 11/23, 12/14 and 12/28,



Town of Northwood, NH

POSITION: Career Firefighter/EMT DEPARTMENT: Fire Department
FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt REPORTS TO: Fire Chief
GENERAL SUMMARY

Under direct supervision, protects life and property by performing firefighting, rescue, emergency medical,
hazardous material, and fire prevention duties. Assists with fire code compliance inspections and
enforcement of all Town, State and National fire codes. Assists with public fire education and public
relations programs and demonstrations.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Responds to fire alarms; medical emergencies; and other emergent or non-emergent service calls.
Performs firefighting activities including driving fire apparatus, operating pumps, operate related
equipment, laying hose, and perform fire suppression including interior firefighting.

Performs emergency technical rescues including vehicle extrications, rescue from confined space,
high angle rescue, water related rescues, rescue from building collapse, rescue from land slides and
cave ins, and other rescue or extrication incidents.

Performs emergency medical aid activities/services at the level of their EMS certification in
accordance with State EMS protocols

Performs post fire clean up and salvage operations such as throwing salvage covers, sweeping
water and removing debris.

Assists as required to secure buildings from rekindie, vandalism or continued damage.

Receives radio and telephone calls, obtains specific information and/or refers calls as necessary to
proper agency or relays fire calls and alarms. Operates radio and other communication equipment.
Attends classes to remain proficient in required job functions.

Assists with fire/safety prevention activities by inspecting buildings and other structures for fire
hazards; and reviewing plans and maps to ensure that facilities comply with fire codes. Advises
owners of changes required or issues compliance orders or warning citations.

Assists with pre-fire planning by inspecting and drawing floor plans of commercial and industrial
buildings and institutions.

Assists with presenting programs to the community on safety and fire prevention topics and
participates in public relations activities.

Maintains fire equipment, apparatus, facilities, and grounds to include, periodically inspecting and
testing equipment to ensure operaticnal readiness.

Complete incident reports and assists with maintain records of incidents, training, inspections, and
the like; performs other administrative duties as assigned.

Maybe required to respond to fire or other emergencies during non-duty hours.

Adheres to all department rules and regulations

Performs building maintenance and cleaning including minor repairs.

Assists with Fire Cause Determination

Computer literate and be able to learn and interact with the various software programs utilized by the
department

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Performs other related duties as required.

Career Firefighter/EMT Page 1 of 3




DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Education and Experience

High school diploma or equivalent, an advanced degree in a related field is preferred. Possession of a valid
NH Commercial Driver's License with air brake and tank endorsement

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities

e Excellent physical condition required with ability to perform strenuous or peak physical activities
during emergencies, or training, for prolonged periods of time under conditions of extreme heights,
intense heat, cold or smoke.

e Ability to follow verbal and written instructions and to effectively communicate in writing and verbally
is required.

» Ability to establish effective working relationships with employees, other agencies and the public is
essential
Ability to write reports and keep records is required.

Ability to work in a par-military organization including an understanding and ability to follow the chain
of command.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED

May be called upon to act as the Company officer or Incident Commander in the absence of a ranking
officer.

LICENSING AND CERTIFICATION

Firefighter |, I certifications.

Nationally Registered Advanced Emergency Medical Technician

Wild Land Firefighter

Hazardous Materials Operations or above

Fire Apparatus Driver Operator Pumps

Incident Command 100,200,700

Firefighters must have current documentation of passing the Firefighter Candidate Physical
Ability Test (CPAT) or meet the State of NH requirements for lateral transfer.

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Below are examples of equipment firefighters may be expected to use and operate. This list should
not be considered all inclusive.

Computer, general office equipment, various department vehicles, fire engines, fire pumps, hoses and
nozzles, hydrant assist valves, master stream devices, self contained breathing apparatus, thermal imagers,
multi-gas detectors, foam generator, hand tools, generators, hydraulic rescue tools, hoist, air bags, various
hand and power saws, fire extinguishers, fans, rescue ropes and pulleys, ice water suit, torches, radiation
detection kits, carbon monoxide detector, SKED and stokes basket, hazmat suits, sprinkler tongs and 2-
way communication equipment. Ambulance apparatus and all related medical equipment up to the level of
their medical license.

Career Firefighter/EMT Page 2 of 3



PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to stand; walk; run; sit; use
hands to finger, handle or feel; reach with hands and arms; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch or crawl.
The employee must regularly lift and/or move more than 100 pounds.

Firefighters must have adequate senses necessary to perform required job functions. Firefighters must

meet required physical and medical standards and must be able to carry, drag or restrain individuals or
equipment more than 100 pounds.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly exposed to wet and/or humid conditions:
moving mechanical parts; high, precarious places; fumes or airborne particles; blood and air borne
pathogens, toxic chemicals or gases, extremes in temperature, cramped surroundings and contact with
death, emotional stress, trauma, contagious disease, and terminal ilinesses. Firefighters are also exposed
to risk of explosions, burns and electrocution, extreme heat, contaminated environments, emotionally upset
people, noise, physical hazards from traffic, fire and falling objects and atmospheric conditions such as
smoke, fumes, odors, and gases. Required to wear various personal protective equipment based on the
requirements of the incident.

Persons with debilitating claustrophobia or acrophobia (fear of heights) will not be considered for
appointment

External and internal applicants, as well as position incumbents who become disabled as defined under the
Americans With Disabilities Act, must be able to perform the essential job functions (as listed) either unaided
or with the assistance of a reasonable accommodation to be determined by management on a case by case
basis.

Approved: Date:

BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Career Firefighter/EMT Page 3 of 3







peoy Amagusiue) op[Q 93X PeOY PIRESNI PIO
peoy ayidwing, pl[O Peoy puod sssuus(
19118 Mmog

‘pereai], Speoy

SSI'69TS . ooy
eve LIS s 42_.:?___.2
6088 - 1 VWH pup uohozZIIgR}S 3EYdsy \B zE
.o g9Tles - o ___To:_E:ummo_uu..u.__
"S51'69T8 ~ jsopmdsy ooy
‘¥ ST R R A BYEYG crmma .rﬂssaramcm___zi
€Oy S paypad] sojiy [PIo) ‘ I e B P OB Y A0 e w@
G6'VL L BERIRE .m.:-u&ﬂﬂ u.—.-Or—ua_g _Um .@QU._0><_... ayenad UOUIW) JE05 21 movrms
. 9€°6L i supdeyasyy Dd sBpaoAy sdis ey suedsy 7202
SO Z puabay




peoy 1s9L1d 199119 YoInyd

peOy puod Ssauus[  peoy e mog

peoy Auouure peoy uLiej us([y
| ‘pojesal], speoy

0SL'E1TS oL |
6L0'El$ WVS oqqny ypydsy . .
TOLVELS (S VWH / Buniw
S6EISE VWH Pup uonnzijiqois jjpydsy /m yq4
(44343 (4ouny) [pag R, |
0cL'e1Ts 1507 ainday IPo]
oLy paipaJy s3I [D30),
LSIL - saipdoy INOIM [Dd 2BDI0AY
Sl'08 | m.__u.&m _._m_£< IDd owEwE,

5

{.571) WINH / PUKIHN s
B3R} wwmrme (£ YIAH 72 HOREZHIGEIS HPYASY /M BT e
{EY07 — [Aourng) 895 2RI e

ANEALE e RYS 13G9NY 1PYSY oo

adi} peoy suedoy £7027

T T 7
91N T L 50 0 puabaj




peocy IITH swIing.sys
SALI(] poomyeQ

peoy o

peoy a2bpug sisuusyg
‘pareal], speoy

v6v'80CS - R v T
v£5'08¢ WVS J3qqny 3jpydsy
9SS'LTIS . ST VWH / Bully
r9€$ (1ouiy) jpas >pea)
vér'eoTs . 3sopapdoy pro]
. : . b FIENG
ig'c i pewear SN _30,._.. - ot L) viNH 7 S |
GE'89 i samday oy |Dd 2BoIeAy 3R e VS 09 HEIISY e
1£°67 - saipday Jeyy [Dd obpIeAy _ 2dAL S sireday yz0T
S| L §EE0 pusbay




peoy abpry
peoy UIrelunop pio
pereai], speoy
98 652S S ! _
£65°L0LS WS seqqny yeydsy.
€5T TSIS (.S°1) VINH / Builiii
- 9v8'65TS 1503 hiwdey [ojof
so'c : paioat] mﬂ___,z [©30] . Huso,m_ H et vt 7 Bt e
8T'59 . m.._Un_OM_ INOIM [Dd .m..mu.‘..0>.<.. SUEAUY marn WS JOGNY LRYUSY mommaon |
£5°8/ sanday Jouy IDd 0mﬂ..ﬂ.>< adA} peoy sareday 5207
SHIN L gz puabay
.I-X P .v;..,u.h.

. TR S AT T . a1
oSt Bunreig odes E
qioddvdls 3
i st e e S i




peoy puod seon]
peoy peijea( 18M0]
peoy morebiyg
‘pareai], speoy

____0ST968 Pl
05T'‘961$ (..5°1) VWH / Buljin
0SZ‘961$ 150 aipday jpIoL
i wte pajusa] SOl [P10L
_vETY sapday 3noyuM |Dd 26pseay
9T LL saioday Jeyy |Hd dBpreAy

[=1 5 L —

{EIOT arm—

ajenkid —— (&L} YNH 7 BRI s

adK) peoy snedey 9702
FTTT7eT iy

SN L SEZ00 puaba




76¥'802CS

 ﬁmwm%WU
B10],

0S296TS

- T0¢

Or8'65CS

G9¢€

I8¢

_ Om«.,mﬁmm

oTY

GGT692S

- sreday |

| semneoL

091891

ve2o

8259

: _mhmmom
- noyrm
10d ebeleay

Oc LL

£58L

S6TL

sipedey JouY

T A A

[AAVA

104 eBeseny

920




TOWN OF NORTEWOOD, NH
EMPLOYEE. COMPLAINT POLICY

COMPLAINTS REGARDING THE PERFORMANCE OF A TOWN EMPLOYEE

The Select Board, Town of Northwood, hereby enacts this COMPLAINT POLICY in instances
where performance is at issue. Any individual, whether or not a resident of the Town, aggrieved

by the performance of a Town employee can appeal to oard of Selectmen for relief. Where

employee performance aggrieves any individual, resident or nonresident, the Select Board enact

receives the completed

4. The Select Board as a whole shall receive the complaint, in non-public session, filed at the
next

regularly scheduled Select Board Meeting. The complaint (including the name of
the individual lodging the complaint, the department named in the complaint and

the actual date and time received in Section 3. above) will be duly noted in the



Select Board Non-Public Meeting Minutes,

5. The Select Board will determine whether the complaint provides sufficient information to
warrant an investigation into the

grievance charged. The Select Board may choose the appropriate vehicle
through which to investigate the grievance, but they must specify the method

chosen for the Non-Public Minutes.

6. The individual or group performing the investigati p““ifi ust prQ_:" a complete

report of findings at the third subsequent Select Board Meeting, unl

ss.additional time to

uiti 5¢ sibility o the Select Board to determine
the appropriate remedial ures. ect reserves the right to accept or reject the
investigative recomniendation in whe in pa th | accepts a recommendation for
disciplinary action, thé Se / ¢ employee with a hearing to show cause
i inary hearing shall be conducted in non-public

nature, harassing or direcﬂy» nd intentionally abusive of the process, they may
waive any and all actions under this policy. If they choose to do so, they must
make their reasoning and resulting actions a matter of record in the appropriate
Select Board Meeting Minutes, This waiver action requires a unanimous vote of
all five Selectmen.

This policy shall be effective immediately upon adoption and shall remain in effect until



superseded or replaced.

Date of Adoption:
November , 2021

NORTHWOOD SELECT BOARD

Hal Kreider,, Chairman

Matt Frye, Vice Chairman

Beth Boudreau

Tim Colby

Jim Guzofski



ATTACHMENT 1
TOWN OF NORTHWOOD

COMPLAINT FORM:
EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE

Date:
STREET ADDRESS:
NATURE OF COMPLAINT:
Details:
Reply Requested: Yes No

Signature

Printed Name

Mailing Address

Phone Number

BOARD OF SELECTMEN REVIEW

Referred to:

Action
Taken:

Reply Prepared:

Date Name



TOWN OF NORTHWOOD
Winter and Inclement Weather Policy and Priorities

Pursuant to RSA 41:11,47.17, 231:92-a and 507-B:2-b, the Northwood Board of
Selectmen hereby establishes the following pollcy and procedure for winter and inclement
weather road maintenance.

Part A: Policy Objectives.

1. Objective. The Town of Northwood seeks to provide timelyi¢efficient and cost-effective
winter maintenance, snow removal, and ice control on the rok s of the municipality for the
safety and benefit of the Town's residents and the gene ng and pedestrian public.

or sidewalk during a storm. It is the inte
safe access to homes, busmesses, and m

* Traffic Congestlon

* Emergencies

* Illness or Absence of Personnel

* Extensive Operations with an Exhausted Crew

6. Adoption. The Town of Northwood has adopted the Winter Operations Snow

Removal and Ice Control Policy effective November 2021. All residents are encouraged to
familiarize themselves with the contents as it describes conditions that one might expect
to encounter before, during and afier a winter storm event,



Part B: Winter Operations Snow Removal and Ice Control Procedures

1. Equipment and Personnel. The Highway Department utilizes all the assets needed to
address snow emergencies.

2. Routes. Currently, the Town is divided into 8 plow routes. The Town’s two (2) 35,000+ gross
vehicle weight trucks, and two (1) one-ton trucks with plow and mounted sanders, and one (1}
pickup truck with plows. Major arteries and school bus routes are prioritized as much as
possible. The Town also hires approximately 5 private contractors, which utilize approximately 5
plow trucks (some equipped with sanders) to plow approximately 63 lane-miles of road in the
Town. (See priority list in #8 Plow Route Priorities)

3. Manpower: Two full time and two on call part {ime per. are assigned to winter
maintenance operations for various aspects of winter r mam‘ nance. In addition, private

tractors, which are a551sted as needed by the
s when school is in session, winter maintenance
th bus routing and delivery.

7. The Superintendent of S¢hools or designated official representative shall contact the
Public Works Department 'é‘termme the condition of the municipality’s roads to
determine the safety of students using school buses prior to 4:30 A.M. The school and bus
company representative shall make the decision to cancel or postpone school for that day.

8. Plow Route Priorities. With a total of approximately 63 lane-miles of Town

roads and public facilities from which to remove snow and ice and 9 pieces of equipment to
handle these responsibilities, the Highway Department must assign priorities for winter
maintenance route activity to maximize the effectiveness of their efforts for the motoring
public.



A. School bus routes will be given the “first priority” during school days. Each
plow route will ensure that the best possible snow clearance will be completed
within one half hour of bus route time.

B. Town, Roadways and Emergency Lanes, are “sccond priority.”

C. Public parking areas at the Schools, Town Hall, Library, Transfer Station,
Community Hall, Police and Fire Station are a “second and third priorities,” and will be
maintained by plowing during the winter storm. The application of deicing materials will
be applied during and after the storm as determined by the Highway Agent or his
designee.

D. Transfer Station Facility personnel may ber qui _d to assist with the Town’s
general winter maintenance operations, If the. faclllty is ope during the snow or
ice storm, DPW personnel will plow this rea prlor to opemn_"‘ or public use. Public

p0551ble to maintain clear ground, but a reas
storms. -

_k:hIS arca, improves the appearance of the road
: good maintenance from being conducted on the

it fo property in its right of way. Many items interfere
e a hazard for vehicles and pedestrians, causing
drainage failures, and thereby road deterioration. Location of mailboxes are allowed at the
owner’s risk within the right of way for purposes of convenience. The United States Postal
bulletin #22102 states: “The Postal Service suggests using a semi-arch or extended arm support
which allows snowplows to sweep near or under mailboxes without damaging supports and
provides easy access to the mailboxes by carriers and customers.”
A. Mailboxes should be installed at least 3 feet from the edge of the pavement and
42" above the surface of the roadway.
B. Installations should be sufficiently sturdy to withstand the weight of heavy snow
resulting from plowing operations,




11. Placement of Snow upon Streets and Roads. No snow is to be shoveled, blown,
plowed or placed, by any means, onto Town streets or sidewalks or across roadways to
the opposite side snowbanks, unless it is immediately cleaned up and removed to
eliminate any hazard or danger to the public or to Town.

12. Post Storm Operations. As determined by the Public Works Foreman or his designee,
snowbanks resulting from previous accumulations shall be pushed back, or shelved, using the
plow and wings of dump trucks, or other suitable equipment to make space for future
snowstorms, Gravel roads will be treated with sand as deemed necessary by the Public Works
Foreman or his designee.

Date of Adoption:
November , 2021
NORTHWQOD SELECT BOARD

Hal Kreider, Chairman

Matt Frye, Vice Chairman

Beth Boudreau




T 98eyg 120T/5/TT Uosuyor Jayem Aq paaedalg

54

a)dwod 120¢/ve/8 Lin/sea/rm GET] aseaJou| saley Souenquuy JulpleFay Fuuesy Nqnd| 1z0Z/0T/8 | 87

T 7

T [iezap 198png wsy sul| Supsanbas spesy uawedap o1 sgeyed anss| 29|dwo) 1C0Z/ET/6 RIS/ TAN ydie | s5990.d ucneledald 128png zzAS UISed | 10g/v/8 | 97

. 4

Q91 uopeso] ‘IZ,/9T/0T S1ep UCONY aladwo) TZ0Z/9T/0T HEIS/509/ 1M Y3iH 133UOIINY Ym UORINY J|gngd S1BUIpI00D | TZOZ/F/8 s

o4

T T T T sdiel 1 ASAIRH %8 poomULION 01 siuswsnoudug yoieasal| | axedwiod| |120z/1/6 TZ0L/T/L S34/%I03U0D/TM ysiy 5duledJeoq Jo uonipual MeneA3[TZ0Z/L/S [ eb

N4

T T  ozoz/T0o 40 sBuipuy 53 552Uppe ‘dIYSISUMO BUjWIRIEP sedwod| [tzoz/T/6 TZOZ/ST/9 M Y3y d1US3UmMQ Weg 3B ASAleH S1EBNSaAU|| TZ0E/L/S | oF

\ } &€

1aA0 88Uy ||ns 01 Joud swesSoxd Juepunpal una TZ0e/ST/zT SLIN/TA/ID ‘ ygIH BUEMLOS BOUBLL MSN YUM ,3A10, 0| TZOZ/ET/OT | 8E

i —=

SLIA 03 PUN4O.4 WO} B3ep Suilg)suel] iiSag| | sssooad ul 1Z0Z/51/01 SLNJTAR/2D [T 2IEMJOS SDUBUIY MIN 03 Uolsuet | Juswsdw|| TZ0e/6T/0T | 9€
_ e i 3

Tz/TE/€ Bunssw 151y BepoFbu ol witgposusd pauiol] | ssa00id ul EZ0Z/TE/2T | | Snuey/S08/iM o] 558501 [EeUaY JUBWTRIY SSRPURId AL S0P | TZ0Z/ST/T vm

2391dwIod [QUR TZ0z/5T/£0 FuluuiBaq SFuNdalr sog 4DEa Sulnp maial| | ssaooud ul| [Tzoz/0g/TT 120z/1/6 ram/sog WiNIpSIN S2DUBUIPIO PUR 53PI|0J UMO] JO MmaIAsY|  Te0e/S/T Mm

e e : —

‘ ZZ0T/1/T j0 s1ep aaeye pasodoly Teoz/ez/TT | |T202/5z/s S0g9/SD/TA winipai ] $834 HWa4 Bulp|ing maN uo BuliesH dyqnd | TZ0z/6/€ 0t

i udissia sSfRIp Gy seanOD pie Spie0G il 0 SURBL # SHUEIO gal sedfifn TRiES I T T e 2

T AR ys Auadisiid o) now dojansp B aind pue UilipE joouasir iom] | ssanold U] TZ0Z/T/0T SO8/AG/TM Whipa J31BYS AUBBIFWS 20} |OOYS YUM NOW dO[SASa TZ02/b/8 MM

e

530 WOk} SUOREPUILIIIOISE JO I3 SSaJppE 1T0T/0E/11 1Z0T/1/6 2/ wnipay 2I1ON $30 Weg puod JaIng ssalppy | TZ0Z/67/9 | v2

A[nr 1oy 10Q yum Bunasw uinpauas| | ssaacad u val 1007857 YSiH anss] ageuel UORIBSIBIL| 1Y PUB 1S M0g [1Z0Z/01/9 M

o "Spuny pa3edpRUEUR 35943 350 03 MOy U0 3ndul Jjqnd Bup93s val $08/TMm UYBIH Spuny w4uv Je asn +of Suteaq Jlgnd | 120z/3z/5 MM

: 6L

TZ0Z/%/21 DI/ M §@H 198png uMmot jo mai2yd 08| TZ0Z/4Z/8 | 8

‘ il

o 09 o3 s3eooed oju) 3183png TZO0Z/3T/TT D/ [V=[TE] 09 0} UoNNquUISIP 404 57 01 19BPNg 508 1BASQ| TT0Z/FT/8 |91

7T SiEnn0e pli Jeaps UGIsSIuL/581en) S| papaaul IS J uiap] | ssedoud Ul [TZ0Z/ZT/ZT | |T20Z/08/S Soa/TAL UBIH SoEIRL) I3 pUB 53aRWIIOT ||V JO MaIABY p1208|TZ0Z/EZ/E H

C T smaels asempley ‘uodaload wesSoad ‘sadnaead p 553 TZOC/OE/TT || T2oe/ST/y | | ABISUBIN/TD/Tm uSie uopzalodd AuIndes 1aghd siepdn pue MeIAsY | TZ0Z/6/E M__H

--:oﬁﬁ GG Bugsswu JoxIn) swns/3unds s3e) ul wiSaq o3 sseooad{ | ssenold ul TZ0Z/TE/TT DdYDS/E0/ T [b%:]|5] WAISAS JUBWIAARUE Y SDBLING PEOY MaN 23910W0D | 120L/7/C MW
¢ 5

..... ] 31235 da1g pue apess sFem a1epdn| | ssadcid Ul| |1Z0Z/08/TT || 120Z/ST/v 33/508/TM FEE B[EDS o8 21epdr| | 120g/Se/T | 8
~ s21epdn o sog/mip aoueldusca Joy [e83) Ag pamaiaal fojjod wsiind saey| | ssecoid ul| [TZ0Z/0E/TT || TTOT/ST/Y |F So9/TM [TE=TT™] Ao [Puucsad S10N pue mapnady| Tz0Z/ST/T w
SIION SRl 3 aeq {(5)aalIBIss Y AT el PRSI 918 M

pastazy] an(J Aorry 3

g 1595BUEBN JSB ], UOHENSILILIPY PUB PIEOg 199Rg[ ¢

TZ0z/60/TT poaepdn ; PoOMILON J0 umOL[ |

N 1 r ] H b 5 5 a b g | Y




z 99ed

T20T/S/TT Uosuyor 1a3jep Ag patedaly

e m: amlhs.wx TT '9Z/01 B UOSS80M GT/DT :SUOISSES Oml a3s|dwao) $210U 335 I2/TAM/SHC UsiH $08 O3 SUOREIUSSS1g J98pNg PEsY JUSUHEdRq | 120e/¥e/8 | 85

T T T T sy wo Raeduics uSisap,350y Gum pajnpeyos Busew| | syejdwon| |1e0z/sis || 1207178 HEIS/508/TA wnips N SUSqEM UMC Saoudw) pue stepdn|  TZ0Z/51/T wm

Ttzoz/etiot || speRHa/ DT SO8 01198pNg Z2Ad V1 JoAod | 10/ 7e/8 M

T uolsSIEG) 35E WO U0S 'Soa M 151l WU PUE STEss suluisTep| | SIeldwio| [T20¢/9%/0T || T20c/0E/e sod/im YSiH Aq1adoid POUMQ UMOL SIQRIIEAY JO UORINY JO BJes|  T20Z/5/T M

e © SUOR2IS3I YUM SIBNGE O] B[S 35N0Y-U| 232jdwo) ._”N\Wm.m&!lw TTWDfsoaftam ugH 3les 13nNqy Alledold paumQ UMoL|TZ0Z/0T/8 MM
N 1 r i H 3 E] a € v




YT BE'6655 2 BrG LSS 28°060'9¢L $ HLBL'T $ | ¥E0LL S| 18£95°28 ! 133 g€ Wsodagi B
EVTLO0765S SE0SLTESS 8¥OTE'SL $ YT Ly $ | sez0e $ | e9veos m 143 ge sodag o
08°96€'965% 14871258 60°BTT'SL $ oF'veE 5 SCFoT $ o1 'aras 143 /g4 Ysodeq o
S9LrE'565S TE 7680255 YEESE L $ 80'95€ B 19751 $ [ 6o'a0ss N 143 gg# sodaq
96'8EE'S6SS E£7°8E5 0ZSS £L°0087, H 80I9Y5 & {8urTov'es] £3345TTH QLo POGMLION O GMOL-IZMEIPYIIN

PO008°709$ EL'SESDLSS 18'192'¢8 $ 9F'SSE'T $ 8LE€TY $ | FTeL’es o se# Hsodag

08T 093 LLTBUBSS £U'BEY'ES $ B5ERT 3 l65'e8e§) BZZ09T U1 POOMUION JG UMOL-TEMEIPYILN
_6EP00°E09S LLZBO'ETES €9IT6'E8 S B57¥0% $ 5T9LE $ | sB0ei 143 veg dsodag

vSE97'700% 8T'8/5'8153 9£'s0£E8 B 95°50F s B6ELT $|seerss | 143 £ Usodag

558007098 | |Temrsiss | |ifTests s 60°E5E g Lt'89T HEREE 143 7es Usod=q

E0'ZFLT09S EU6LL LTSS | 05'z9g'e8 $ #2705 s irrest ¢ | 20983 T4 sadeq )
L6°222°0095 BCYLLLISS | BOEOTER 5 B9 1LY $ 0L30Z s | ee'zags |- 143 pg# Asadag

975656555 99'969'915% 86'86878 $ 05’ L¥E $ 04E0) § | oosres Bz Isodag )
$I0STEESS 81555915 2Y'S6LT8 $ 0907 $ T0'7LT $ | 7008s$ 143 gz# usodaq

T90L9'865¢ | STGBOTTSS | LvTESTE 3 00 T6V'T $ 00689 ] 000ET'TS Lz# 350034 [T202/T/E
79°0pS'965% SIBGSVISS Ly Z86'18 B £0'E6E i [ vTess 143 974 ysodag

ST'6L6'565% TIEET YIS T0b18 e g Py g ) BESSON 143 Se# yis0dag

BTZL5'5655 ST'0BR'ETSS ¥ETE9IR s 98°E8 I R T T T T T ey paysed isakeu| T
vrser'sess 6EOZR'ETSS 58'B99'TE $ |ozesr &) $[sk€is 14T veeusedag
607827655 BT L7EETSS 0675018 3 Z6'SPT 3 s | ov'80zs 143 ez#wsodag
E9'EL5TB53 LTTRTELSS 9EZ6ET8 3 62'89€'T § $|orvse'ts o T Tzmsusedegl T
E6'RIITESS | 86TIBTISS 56508708 $ 60 5 < |etd™ T T IaTzasodsg

vSIT97655 | T0TIETISS £5°508°08 $ £'Liy g $ | ex'zeos 193 oz usodeq

TZSE6TESS BEVEETISS | £3°009°08 $ 018 HI $ I tosovs 614 ysodag

077ES'TESS 8ZTSO'TTSS 766508 § 68ESS s §istes HOY 8T# ¥sodaq

Z6'0VL 0655 B 86FDISS £9°TFT 08 S 056 3 S| 8LsELs 143 £ 1# wsodag

+TG0570655 SEEOP0TSS 6L10T08 $ SKSYST s S| eLI0TTs oT# igodag

SEL6E'88SS | 06/58'805% SYBESBL $ 59°ZvE 5 ) $ ['ossars ST# Ws0deq | Te0e/1C

| sgz06’s858 SZ'STS808% 09768764 g 157085 ‘s $ T oeeres PTH USOUSg

§5°8£0°285% vLrER205S TEErTL 3 sg'geE § § ] sovsrs T 143 eT# Ysodag
L7 PBE'98ES 58'565°£05% 85°866°8/ 57 TT09 € & [ racEs "§T/T parsod ysareiu

09°805°9855 | srses’ioss | euseRe $ TUEsy s $ [ vorosas 133 i aisedaq;

25818858 BL77S0°L05% 08'59L8L $ 79'709 $ $ [ s209ss HTwsedsal T
iolsevess | vT0Se05% €5 205°8L 5 E9Llr s| HESED 133 OTH 150020

YESLTYESS | Tezz6's06s E8T0EBL S ¥LZ0F $ 3 | Brriss 143 s usodag ’
88'00L'¢85% LEDL5'505S I0ETR/ $ 89°86C s $ [sorozws 133 g wsodeq o
LTFLTERSS 69'TLE'SDSS 27’7008 s LT8TL s slesszots ] T 133 £# ws0daq e
TTEHETRES | (S €55'P0SS 89V69'LL 3 159%2 s| $ | pTTces - g#sedag
6568785 | SEO0EWHST 0ess 1L g <Tsor & ST Eiaise” T
BILTETESS 08'T06'€054 BE'STYLL $ 6COVT $ $ ' Tr'o0zs 143 4 msodag -
9r9TTIESs | TSTOLE0SS STESELL $ TTEES $1 $ i 0E06TTS o 4 usodaq

9r'976'6/5% | oeaz6T0ss 9T'866'9L $ [ (ot ewe’ 1§} _ QUiRl OOMULION 10 UMo Lemelpufn|
95°£T'T85S DE"876706% STOPERL § SSVEE $ o E S| esLirs 143 74 usodag -
E9°06£'0856 5L°€65°T08% 2270784 3 T0'LZET $ | zzszs ¢ [egzsits ozozft/s
SUERO6LSS VLOYETOSS TOLLSLL 3 1 T plemcg doUeles| TZ0Z/1/T

‘ aurzjeg _.mmm.m.I Joueeg ey | wu:m_mm Baugnquyy | osuadyg aay| 3115 %04 20x3 oUBINGUY || SIUBNGILY %0E ‘ﬁng_woaw_m 2101 mo_ﬁ 13530 |~ T ;e

T 1707 Bateingquiy

i2 m;_o.:, a Drea SENANTRTSN \J:vtsuw _..J(SJMD _me




99°€r6'8£95 YE 1901558 BT § ey % ferm B " - 51/ pe1sod 15a.aKn

£T78R'BERS | LT9T0'TESE G ) ZEVIY H 87'E9T $looiey 133 734 Yisodag
ESbO0'BESS | S6E0vDSSy | esooezs $ 8T'L6 $ 557w S 147 T8# usodisg

or'sas'tees | £rapeDsss €6'855°L8 B “£9°86€ $ 58041 $ | 876355 L ~ L43gssusodag

Tr9sTLES | vUBOEEYSS | BossEss s | lulesz g £6 66 S| oL'gees T L33 84 Usodsa

treos'oens | |zewederss | |sreszies 5| COTHTT 5 | co'esy $ [ ooceats ~ gu#sodag

TUsee'sees | LE'€ES'epss | sTEBL9R S| | €94y g 0702 $ | ££e89s sigusodsq,
5£°059°PE98 FE'950°8rSS Sb65°08 $ TLB8E s 09°99T $ | Tessss S 143 924 wsodeg

B'560°7E98 €9'L99°LbSS SELTroR $ 70°€5¢ $ 5891 ¢ aprasy L33 sz Wsodag -
TOVES'EES L TOWTves | OvEsTies s 8IYSTT ST T taruss 7§ sszesits - L pousedsg

97 TR TESS ERETO9VSS E9'TZL'SE s wET s SSETT § | av8ies T Termusodag N
66798 TESS T6PSL'StSS 20°'809'58 s vozsz sl T 00°80T § 7 0009¢% 30 HOV ¢4 disodag o
E6T007TESS | I6T0S'SySS | B00DS'SE $ EETLE $ L5651 ${oeTess” | T aggwsedsg)
e TLF0E9S | saosTarss | Tsowess  §| 6¥ E58 3 17258 $locostts | T T A3 owr usodsg

6E 0876095 60°£62'7pSS UEER6TR B 70°CeST R s < §|seveees £9# 1js0dag i
voo00'czes | sosocrss 66'00E T8 3 04°0%2 g LI'€0} $ | Laeved B9# 15008120/ 1/9
[r7ev'arsé | sewdrorss TTLETPE g L T - A L3 [o# usodag

09'S5+979% JoreTeTiss | pESETER g Sroy B SELT G §HE pasod 1sais|

L0166'9795 | sTeczTvss | | 6ieTTive 3 B00rE 3 EYR= S 133 gggusodag]
TETTE'SZOS 6T°6E6'TPSS £LTL5'ER s egrseT T 3 S -y ) o A -1 - R = K= T 1T 1. T
BSErSazes | 9€TI89TYSS | ZCEes'Es $ 267207 5| ©yoovse T slesseers 0 ygrsodag

ogese'zzod | 8€wso'eess lersesTd | § TVTIZT $ T'6TS 4| t90ssT8 143 £94 usodag .
667760798 | 96'avy'3eSs E0'SLr'ER § €Ll Tl T orvor T 8 eezues o B " 143 798 wsodag o
90'0pT0Z0s | EEG96'IESS | EETLTZS S RLGLE s T T eoer T T ewoesy 113 79# ysodag

£2'E0L'6T0% S5EGS/ESS 8T0TT'Z8 § EVECOT 5 TaBER $ | sozer'ts Tpsgasodag T T
BLIPCRTO% ZT0L5'0ESS 99'1/9°T8 $ 60088 $ 06281 ¢ | B6erss 143 65& wsodag

6£'869'/19% £006T°9855 9CB0S'T8 s (BTBYE 3 STT6VT sTorwmsys | T s54 usodag

69'vZ/TI9$ | 9T'80£°7E5S | €591008 3 65290 3 vT'85Y §| evezsTs £5# ¥s0dag[T207/1/5
S5L6TTIS LUGESTESS [ 6E 5SSl $ vess $ 1857 § | se6i$ stfpposodasaim
TZgTTTT98 £9'e85 TGS 85ES 6L 3 95'98¢ $ BREEH § ] ezeass

85°595°019¢ | zoZeT'1Ess T5'89€'5L § 59°186°) § LL 048 RS T

79E99°800% | ¢¥'S98'67SS 0T'86L°8L 3 00°00L $ 00°00€ $ [ 0o000'T$ 90 HOY va#usedaq

TUR9909% | THSOT6rss 0T'86V'BL 5 67°E/E R P S Tereess i g adag] T T T
VEOET'L098 [ £TZ6/8758 TCEEERL I 8Z'STE $ 95°5ET HEGES L3 g5# Hs0dag

0S'8L9'009S S8°S/'8TS$ S9T02'3L B Trive $ 06°8YT $ | zeosrs T 133 T5% Hs6dag

Brestooss | eveerezss | sUeso'sc S TS T ev'61T § ! 6aTElS T 05# Ws003G

65DSP'S09% | TE'9TO'LESS ITYESLL § Lere g 6L FOL $ 1 ogipes 133 ey wsodeg|
Bre0Ts0ss | TTELEfzSS | 800SLLL $ 000z s T 0028 $loooszs T Bb# 150050

BUEIE09S TZOLT /TS S0°ERY'LL § YTTUY $ B 657707 $ | £97L9s - 1z0e/i/e
99BETHOSE L6 6Y9TSS 83°0F7' 2L § - POLTT ¢ T lervis s lzewiss o o

vIETETO9S €9 Leriens TT968°5L $ 8286 H [ s ovorts ] Sr# isodag

pEeRTZoes | Sreresess [e0vssYr | S 94Ty $ 0LLIT §, Teeess 133wy usodag| -
TOTESTOSS | €9%T6%TSS 68°9/9°a/ s eet $ 89T $|vTess |7 T 143 £ usodag
GSEEOTI0SS | 19TTESHISS ¥6'205°9. K 96'SEY 3 ‘sgegr s| 187798 77143 s usodag

L°906°009¢ |s9e80'ress | 60TZE'SL $ | svost 3 FEL9T 5| eLesss LaTpsysodsa) ©
S6'Bv8'6655 | OrEeErss | SLESTOs $ ST'E6 3 ey s | eorie IS0 wsedeg| T T
BS'80/'665¢ [ se9esEea$ | e9Trros & £5°8% B 0T § | reeod T suc parsod el :\




I8ETP0LES W'785'6LTS EE'9£8'06 g 00°68T g foors ¢ |oo07s G7T# VsodRg!

T8'8YT0LES 87 E6E6LTS EEGSL06 $ 05°30¢ $ T vsoet s | broevs Lsapeuswodsa)

LETLL69ES 861806473 6577906 $ EE'55 $ TJesze ST te TS 133 €714 ysodag

9 oISEIES | S9'886'8L78 | 1gTesos S| |erte 4| 806 §] ¥0eTs T Lazzgysedsal
Trovveass | evese'Bizs | | ELTS06 $ g8 $ 0T9LE 5 | oowse'Ts - 133 Teryaisodag

TTIET'R9ES | 6O'GIO'RLZS £5°99T°06 $ ELTSE $ SLOST $ | 8rzoss L 153 0zL# ysodeq -
¥LE29°7988 96'299'14T$ | 8°5T0'06 g 60'STS’Z s 06°LL0T $ | e6zeses o alkusodeg -
SLOB0WOES | L8TSTSLTS | B8TLE5°88 g1 steee g7 T Jogedt & s9Tass 133 8114 Wsadag

01675 °€9¢% TLeaL VLTS 8E'69L'88 3 7T0ZET $ {56 $ | TovTEEs : N 143 £TT% usodag B
67 ¥Le 008s 05'6E7CLT5 66 VLLLS 4 50°00T S 062 Tdlesnrts Lagttgusodeg)
05 T£0°095% T56EECLES G0TEL 18 3 00°€5T 3 (toes T s | oosts Lagtmwsodsg [T T
6y TER'eSES | TrS0T'ZIZS | 8098 $ £9°92T $ T |ewes T s | soeaTs pIIghsodeg)
vrE0s'esEs | BLTR0'TLTS 99'175°.8 g 97'819'T $ | ssee9 s T remiezd €114 hsodaqT20z/1/6
E9TSE'LSES | Zoesr'nezs | [ TrgTe'eR | $ T e $ ©|ewer 5 srves - 51/8 porsod sasequ )
0657 1564 rsTrors | | eososes 89°€ST 1 ess | s]oveirs HOV ZIT#dsodsg)
aszoT'isgs | eovworoszs |sgTewos s T T TTerwwt T Tg|T T T lzies 8| ovozo'n 143 gysodea)
0T°280°s5€4 S6'058°892¢ | siagz'og 5 vTT6 s ¥5'6E AR oy 133 0Ty wsodag|
ZESSEPEES | T1°852°897% TZI6T'98 3 FTHrS 5 TT€ET $ | seres gottwsedsg) T
L6¢4THSES | L5ETTBOTS | 00WI6SE §'| corpon’aoss \ T {oo'obn'oEs) S6TZ/TTH P POOMULION 10 UMO] [emespyuny]
tsLivvsed | | sereeoss | | oovoe'ss s TTT9E 5 LLPST 5 [egsTas Liasorswsedsg|
'80'799'€598 SEES8 LGS £ze08'58 % €5°85€ 3 59°€5T § | 6TTISS 143 sok#sodsal o
SREYT'ESIS | TEVAVI9SS 16°659°G8 $ T Es $ 8 8TC $ | 651928 B0TH 1USGAST .

0F88Eeses | | TZ'TI6'99sS | 60'LTyas 5 LG6E5T $ 00099 ¢ [ ze66T'TS 143 sotgwsedsal
£E'RQT0S9S | vTITHSESS 60404 v8 $ trere G| T T Teoert T €larosys T T T  parg usadeg| T

LT869°69% | ET'BLO'S9SS | p0'0Z9bR % o0LvES S ¥EDSZ S ! vrvess £0T# ASOASE

£L'€98"8peS E0PETYISS | GLE9ET g Tomeaz’s ¢ ileweswss) | p9080TTHN POOMULON JO UMO| [BMEIPUMM|TZ0E/T/E
EEEETES9S | EGWEYFISS DE6E9°E6 3 6006 s T9°8E §| or'sets ot usodag

£9P00'859% | ¥6€0V'v955 | 69°009'E6 3 /5701 $ Tleser T T s et 101 peodag

078582594 ZE 0058 £2°955°%6 $ ooz $ Tizer $|egoes T B ST/Z paisod saai| -
£726£'159% L£7857'0955 9t 8ES €6 $ ag'eg] 8 T zees ¢ [ orsizs HOV D0L#% ysodag
ER'7/S'7695 | 6TSOT'9SS | vozeres g VETIY §17 T s | esrres 193 664 Hsodad

07E06'9S9% | S6TE9EISS | STOLZ'EE g wover 8 76971 $ [ voTers ‘143 gs# psodag

917859595 E7'REE'E9SS £6EFT €6 $ 86'89% $ ¥I°8ST $|erezss T 133 264 hsadag

PUSSE'SS9S | GTESE79SS | BIGR6T6 § S90ere $| 58'306 s | ooszo'es Tgggusodag| T T T
¥S'5T67595 09°84:8°095% ¥6'9/076 3 Be0LEL % 00°5TS ¢ | eegzsTs 7 133 ger usodag
§a'e5TTe08 | T9z€g'sSsS | PEUSSTE s 7T £l I 0L%0C § | ec'zans Lagvasusedagl
TTEIS0598 | 86651'655% PTESE'TE $ T Zoses § esert ¢ | Tosrrs 153 £64% Nsodaq|

19500595 | 96F78'855S 59°602°T6 $ seTsy % | 89°E6T § | essr9s T "Lazeswsodagl
YO6REEYIS LOELERSSS | 46GTOTE 8| FAR-T R s| T T pesey $ | orvoris 77 emwsodag)
8SYTELYS | SEUFE'LSSS £9'9/506 s1 7 6670511 3] ey s | ees L4 pagwsodeg) T
£8°80E'0¥9% 96'912'955¢ 166006 $ T |ETes < Tesst s |souuss _ L33 68y Yisodaq
BTT6L'SY9S | 6S¥S8'sss$ | 099668 $ es 8| T oo IS 8g# sodaq) -
8YGSEYY9S | 8B'9S8SSS | 00°605'68 § ) g Tszest 3| 092288 i T lamsgswsodsg) T

BT EBYEPOS 95 THTYSSS wavres | $ z80va'T el T eseesT 4| 8rT0TEs - om#wsodsa[1Z07/T/L
DT /8T TH9S L0 2854 ogses’se  s|  Jwwzwr O s|” BeT07 ¢ 'e9%z08 7T 193 gg# usodaq .
TIS0P9S | 05°6CCCSES ezgess g saers & T PRT3 3 | 6U°G0T'TS 7 paseswsodeal
8/°905°6595 TG SSPTSSS 97150838 $ 8TYEE g ) veeer  §|zrEess 153 £84 Hs0daQ




65" L6V SBES £0700°E6TS 95°E67'Z6 S TZ'¥L $ €02 5 | oECEs stfotpemsodisasany
GTLIY'SBES 78'686°C6CS (Y I8F'CH s 18°€67 $ POTIT S GYE0LE 143 eyl usodsg
VRTLLVBES TO'96Y C6Z% E8SLLCh 3 £TE0Y $ 78'eLT $ | soorss B - TrTE Hsoddg
6LSET'PRES 87776077678 T0'E0T'Z6 Y FCEB0T 5 ’ $| ozeos'Te 143 Tk us0dag
85°TE9'7BES | vSBeE0STE | SO'pE9'iE 3 &6°86L 3 AEzatan 143 0vT# usbdag T
LUTEYT8ES | §566L0625 | Z9TGTTE 3 58l g TSI § | poess Ligssigusodeg) T
ET060°T8ES | EO'EC6'68TS OT'E/T16 s 85 Vi ! 69°Z1T s [ rzeess 143geTgusodea)
2UE0S08ES $'805°68CS Tr'566°06 S erzeot | § 99°ThY S Eesip s B LETH Wsodag
£9°870'628% | 7o'sev'eszd 1875506 3 05226 3 05768 $| o0'sze TS HoV 9eT# wsodag B
€5°€0L°LLES | erwvssTs | TESSTOB s LETYBT $ TH68L $[seTeazs 133 seT#Asedag
VUZIOSLES | ST90LS8TS 62'505'68 ¢ 60°0TeT $ 88'915 4 T pEmeusedag
LSTYEELES 99'SEYY8TS | TOLFE'ER § " oo0ssE {00054 85} __ODZLLTTH POSMULON Jo UndL BRI
ISTEUALES | eSSeYE8T$ | TOUBS'ES 3 DO'GPE_ loorsresy " G5TLLTT# POOMYLION JO LAOL [EMEIPLIM
L5LEVLISS oTSerYETS | TOTETE 8 z0'S6 s erov $ | sseTs "7 L33 geTs wsodsg
TETOELES | vS00vvETS | STT06T6 3 s6ECTE $ | PEREET $ [ 2e7ov'vd TET# WS0EBG [TT0T/T0T
SO'GER'ZLES 19°9/7°187% ¥r795°T6 $ 157961 3 s $ | viogzs  TeT#wsadaq;
TEBSSTLES 0T080T8ZS TTYYTE S - sl T 100 s | to0s 150dap 1531 G3INEISU| OETH NSOUR,
oEEsSTLES | OT080'18TS 0T8LYTE s 75628 S vt HER S 113 ezT4 wsodsq)
zeig0’'zess | [eg0sC0sTs | 9e9EEle S 8T°56¢ 1 fE6al R L3 geigusodag| T
16728 TIES 855270873 65°L9T16 g 87°80E $ €TTET s lTrores T Lo
9SeRUTLES | OTLb00RTS | SvSE0Ts 3 w T g 6761 HEZ: 777 sve paased pseraiu

" ee'zon‘osts [7°9T0T6 $]7 S86IY $ ¥6'6.T S| 646655 Hagzisysodeg| T




State of Nefe Hampshice

Board of Tax and Land Appeais

Michele E. LeBrun, Chair
Albert . Shamash, Esq.,, Member
Theresa M. Walker, Member

Governor Hugh J. Gallen
State Office Park
Johnson Hall
107 Pleasant Street
Concord, New Hampshire
03301-3834

Anne M. Stelmach, Clerk

Michelle Mayberry
v,
Town of Northwood
Docket No. 29874-19PT
ORDER
The Board of Tax and Land Appeals (“Board”), having received a letter on

November 1, 2021 stating the Taxpayer wishes to withdraw the above-captioned appeal, the

appeal is marked as follows:
“appeal withdrawn; no further action.”
SO ORDERED.
BOARD OF TAX AND LAND APPEALS

] %g} Spelmathos

Anne M. Stelmach, Clerk
Per Order of the Board

CERTIFICATION

T hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing Order has this date been mailed, postage
prepaid, to: Michelle Mayberry, 401 Jenness Pond Road, Northwood, NH 03261, Taxpayer;
Town of Northwood, Chairman, Board of Selectmen, 818 First NH Turnpike, Northwood NH
03261; and Cross Country Appraisal Group, LLC, 12 Kayak W 1y - Unit 1, Boscawen, NH

03303, Contracted Assessing Firm. f }:? kf}%ﬂ,«{mm

Anne M. Stelmach, Clerk

Date: 11/4/2021

Telephone: 603-271-2578
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
Visit our website at: www.nh.gov/btla



1L

Rockingham County Treasurer

119 North Road
Brentwood, New Hampshire 03833

Scott G. Priestley Sr., County Treasurer
Tel. 603-679-9413 Fax. 603-679-9346
spriestley@co.rockingham.nh.us

October 28, 2021

Town Hail Offices

818 First Nh Turnpike
Narthwood, NH (3261
Dear Board Of Selectmen,

Enclosed is the 2021 Rockingham County Warrant. The amount of the warrant is $548,684.00.
Payment is due by Friday, December 17, 2021.

Please notify us if you choose to transfer the payment by wire or ACH and we will make
arrangements for receipt of funds; please contact Elaine Newhury at 603-679-9364 for
instructions by December 9th.

Your attention and processing of this Warrant is appreciated.

Sincerely,

)&m%@mﬁ S
Scott G. Priestley, Sr., Rockingham County Treasurer

Enc.



=L

Town of Pittsfield
Zoning Board of Adjustment
85 Main Street
Pittsfield, NH 03263

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
REQUIRED NOTICE TO TOWN’S AND CITIES
WITHIN A 20 MILE RADIUS OF A PROPOSED TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY

October 27, 2021

Dear Sir or Madame:

You are hereby notified that the Pittsfield Zoning Board of Adjustment will conduct the following

Public Hearing beginning at 6:00 P.M., on Thursday. November 4, 2021, at Town Hall, 85 Main
Street, Pittsfield NH, '

The Zoning Board of Adjustment has received an application for a Variance from: Vertex Tower
Assets, LLC, to permit construction and operation of a Telecommunications Facility that will be (1)
located in the Suburban Zoning District (a portion of subject property is in the Light
Ind./Commercial Zoning District), and (ii) setback less than 125% of the height of the tower from
the property lines of the lot on which it is located will be submitted to the Zoning Board of

Adjustment on Thursday, November 4, 2021 at 6:00 P.M., at the Pittsfield Town Hall, during a
meeting of the Board. : ' _

Subject property is owned by DEMES Investments, LLC., 49 Pilgrim Drive, Bedford, NH 03110

and is located at 1002 Upper City Road, Pittsfield NH, on Tax Map R21, Lot 12 and consists of
8.1 acres. '

Please be advised this may be the only notice you will receive.

There will also be an application for a Site Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit (if needed)
submitted to the Pittsfield Planning Board for this property, on Thursday, November 18, 2021, af
7:30 P.M., at Town Hall. See attached notification in this mailing.

If you have any questions, please contact the Selectmen’s Office at 603-435-6773 Ext. 3 or via email
at btheriault@pittsfieldnh.gov.

Sincerely,

. . . oy
SGonis Fhansa s

Bonnie Theriault, Administrative Assistant

Ce: File -




Town of Pittsfield
Zoning Board of Adjustment
85 Main Street
Pittsfield, NH 03263

- Notice of Public Hearing

The Pittsfield Zoning Board of Adjustment will hold a public hearing pursuant to
RSA 674:33 and RSA 676:7, on an application for a variance from Pittsfield
Zoning Ordinance, Article 18 Telecommunications Equipment and Facilities,
Section 18.5 Zoning District Requirements, 18.7 D-1 (a) Conditional Use Permits
and Site Plan Review; Criteria; Construction and Performance Standards -
Setbacks and Separation in the Suburban/Light Ind./Commercial Zoning District.
This parcel has dual zoning, with the portion of the lot addressed in the variance
application in the Suburban Zoning District,

The time and place of the hearing is Thursday, November 4, at 6:00 P.M., at the
Pittsfield Town Hall, 85 Main Street, Pittsfield, NH. The applicants name and
address is Vertex Tower Assets, LLC., 225 Dyer Street, Providence, R1 02903.

The proposal is to permit construction and operation of a Telecommunications
Facility that will be (i) located in the Suburban Zoning District (a portion of
subject property is in the Light Ind./Commercial Zoning District), and (ii) setback
less than 125% of the height of the tower from the property lines of the lot on

which it is located. Subject property is Tax Map R21 Lot 12, 1002 Upper City
Road, owned by DEMES Investments, LLC., 49 Pilgrim Drive, Bedford, NH
03110.

The application for a variance is on file for public inspection at the Town Hall, 85
Main Street, Pittsticld, NH. '

ZBA Vertex Tower Assets. LLC/DEMES Investments, LLC Variance posted 10-26-2021




Town of Pittsficld
Planning Board
85 Main Street
Pittsfield, NH 03263

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
REQUIRED NOTICE TO TOWN’S AND CITIES
WITHIN A 26 MILE RADIUS OF A PROPOSED TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY

October 27, 2021

Dear Sir or Madame;

You are hereby notifted that the Pittsfield Planning Board will conduct the following Public Hearing

beginning at 7:30 P.M., on Thursday, November 18. 2021, at Town Hall, 85 Main Street, Pittsfield
NH.

The Planning Board has received a Major Site Plan Review application and Conditional Use Permit (if
necessary) from Vertex Tower Assets, LLC., to allow for construction and operation of a
Telecommunications Facility consisting of a 150” tall laitice style tower inside a 60° X 60° fenced in
compound, that will be located in the Suburban Zoning District (a portion of subject property is in the
Light Ind./Commercial Zoning District), and will have a setback of less than 125% of the height of the
tower from the property lines, of the lot on which it is located. Subject property is owned by DEMES
[nvestments, LI.C., 49 Pilgrim Drive, Bedford, NH 031 10, and is located at 1002 Upper City Road,
Pittsfield NH, on Tax Map R21, Lot 12 and consists of 8.1 acres. '

Should a decision not be reached at the public hearing, this application will stay on the Planning
Board agenda until such time as it is either approved or disapproved. Agendas and Meeting Minutes

can also be viewed on the Town website located at www.pittsfieldnh.pov. Please be advised this
may be the only notice you will receive.

There will also be an application for a Variance submitted to the Pittsfield Zoning Board of

Adjustment for this property, on Thursday, November 4, 2021, at 6:00 P.M., af Town Hall. See
attached notification in this mailing. -

If you have any questions, please contact the Selectmen’s Office at 603-435-6773 Ext. 3 or via email
at btheriault{@pittsfieldnh.gov. ' - '

.

Sincerely,

Donnete Hhorico Lt

onnie Theriault, Administrative Assistant

 Ce: File




Town of Pittsfield
- Planning Board
85 Main Street
Pittsfield, NH 03263

Notice of Public Hearing

Notice of Public Meeting/Public Hearing

The Pittsfield Planning Board will hold a meeting pursuant to RSA 676:4, 1, (¢), (1), to
determine whether a submitted application for Site Plan approval and Conditional Use
Permit (if necessary) are complete according to the board’s regulations. The time and
place of the meeting is Thursday, November 18§, 2021, 7:30 P.M., at the Pittsficld Town
Hall, 85 Main Street, Pittsficld, NH. The applicants name and address is Vertex Tower
Assets, LLC., 225 Dyer Street, Providence, RI (2903.

The proposal is a Major Site Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit (if necessary) to
allow for construction and operation of a Telecommunications Iacility consisting of a
150 tall lattice style tower inside a 60 X 60’ fenced in compound, that will be located
in the Suburban Zoning District (a portion of subject property is in the Light
Ind./Commercial Zoning District), and will have a setback of less than 125% of the
height of the tower from the property lines, of the lot on which it is located. Subject
property is Tax Map R21 Lot 12, 1002 Upper City Road, owned by DEMES
Investments, LLC., 49 Pilgrim Drive, Bedford, NH 03110. The application for Site Plan
Review and Conditional Use Permit is on file for public inspection at the Town IHall, 85
Main Street, Pittsfield, NH.

Notice of Hearing on the Merits of an Application for Site Plan Approval If the
Pittsfield Planning Board determines that Vertex Tower Assets, LLC’s, application for
Major Site Plan approval and Conditional Use Permit (if necessary) are complete at the
above-noticed meeting, then the board will hold a public hearing pursuant to RSA 676:4,
I, (c), (1); RSA 676:4, 1, (¢); the Town of Pittsfield Site Plan Review Regulations, section
[11; and the Town of Pittsfield Subdivision Regulations, article 5, section 1, (d), and
article 5, section 4, (a) on the merits of the application immediately afier the board’s
completeness determination. The board will not give additional notice of a continuance
of the merits hearing to a later meeting.

Public Notice DEMES Investments, LLC posted 10-26-2021




e ANV —

Lguon_ 0 e

by

SCALE Vv =200

i

PRIPER!Y MAPS

- kg

g PITTSFIELD

NE W HAMPSHIRE

R




QOctober 29, 2021

Northwood Board of Selectmen
Northwood Town Hall

818 First New Hampshire Turnpike
Northwood, NH 03261

Northwood Board of Selectmen,

Once again, the Jenness Pond Shore Owners Association {(JPSOA} is respectfully requesting
$4500.00 in funding for the 2022 Jenness Pond Lake Host Program.

We have a strong Lake Host Program in terms of staffing longevity and JPSOA board oversight of
the program itself. Our Lake Hosts have been instrumental in identifying potential introductions
of invasive aquatic species since our Lake Host Program inception. In August 2021, our Lake
Hosts identified the presence of purple loosestrife (classified as an invasive) on a water
recreational vehicle as reported on NHLakes.org website,

Members of the JPSOA continue to do their due diligence to protect this beautiful resource.,
Collectively, we raised $13,895 for the 2021 l.ake Host Program season (via a combination of
private contributions given directly to JPSOA and direct deposits to Jenness Pond through the
NHLakes.org website). Our members have also provided 38.5 volunteer hours at the boat ramp
this year to supplement our paid Lake Hosts.

We are actively in the process of resurrecting the Weed Watcher Program, which is a NH
Department of Environmental Services volunteer program established in 1988. In addition,
there are ongoing efforts to provide invasive species education to our members and recruit
additional volunteers to further supplement our current Lake Host boat ramp coverage.

Funding provided from the town of Northwood will ensure that our well-established Lake Host
Program continues to prosper. We thank you for your continued support of our efforts to keep
lenness Pond invasive species free,

David Ostrander, President

Jenness Pond Shore Owners Association
PO Box 87
Morthwood, NH 03261



TOWN OF NORTHWOOD, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Administration Office
818 First New Hampshire Turmnpike, Northwood NH 03261
(603)942-5586 Facsimile: (603)942-9107
wjohnson@town.northwood.nh.us

October 28, 2021

Tim Jandebeur
33 Welsh Road
Northwood, NH 03261

RE: Right to Know Request
Mr. Jandebeur,

In response to your most recent right to know request, please be advised the Select Board
responds as follows; the answers to your questions #1-5 were obtained in two non-public
sessions held on October 12 with the Select Board and October 19 with the Select Board and the
employee and are sealed in the minutes of these sessions, therefore, will not be answered. We
assume questions #6 — 8 are rhetorical and the answer to #9, we understand the excavator was
picked up on private property by the leasing company.

For the Northwood Select Board

.
Walter Johnson
Town Administrator

CC: Select Board



